
                                                                                                                                            1
Draft

TOWN OF RED HOOK
CONSERVATION ADVISORY COUNCIL

Minutes of meeting
June 12, 2013

Members present:  Chairwoman Laurie Husted, Susan Ellis, Mike Zelie, Sarah Imboden, 
Denis Collet (7:22 P.M)

Absent:  Anne Rubin, Karen Schneller-McDonald, Dr. Jane Ferguson, Ross Gould

Guest:  Susan Gillespie, co-organizer of Citizens for Local Power

CALL TO ORDER / QUORUM:  Chairwoman Laurie Husted called the meeting to 
order at 7:04 P.M.  At that time there was no quorum.

MINUTES OF THE MAY 8, 2013 MEETING:  Sarah Imboden noted that under the 
Arbor Day report, a review determined that no compost bins had been stolen.  With that 
additional notation, the minutes were approved with a motion made by Mike Zelie and 
seconded by Sarah Imboden.

CONFERENCE – GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE FOR STORMWATER 
MANAGEMENT IN THE URBAN LANDSCAPE:  Laurie Husted announced that 
this conference would be held on Friday, June 21, 2013 from 1– 4 P.M., and she has 
signed up for it.  She suggested to Mike Zelie that he might find either speaker relevant 
to urban work that he is doing.  Sarah asked what they considered urban landscape.  
Laurie noted that it is being hosted on a college campus. 

BICYCLE / PEDESTRIAN COUNT:  Mike Zelie asked Laurie Husted if she had put 
together the information from the count.  Laurie said that she had sent the information 
on to the County Bicycle/ Pedestrian Committee.

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES REVIEW:  Mike Zelie noted that at the Planning 
Board meeting on May 20, 2013, there was continued discussion of drainage issues on 
the Todd and Maribeth Catlin proposed subdivision.  He added that the Planning Board 
has accepted conceptually a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP).  The 
engineer has proposed rain gardens and other mitigation, but there is a question of who 
would maintain them.  Sarah Imboden said that neighbors brought up an issue of a no 
subdivision clause in the deed to the property.  Mike said that occurred at the June 3 



                                                                                                                                           2
meeting, where a neighbor brought up the deed restriction.  CAC members discussed 
who should be responsible for disclosing that information when an application is being 
reviewed.  Susan Ellis noted that is possible for a deed restriction to be overruled.

Laurie Husted said that she would still like to see the Stormwater Pollution Prevention 
Plan (SWPPP).  Mike added that engineers looked at the plan and said that it would not 
exacerbate any of the problems currently affecting neighboring homeowners.  Laurie 
continued that she would like to know if the SWPPP would just apply to the construction 
phase, or to the site design, and how it would relate to Low Impact Design (LID) as part 
of site infrastructure development.  CAC members decided that because of the existing 
issues of stormwater and drainage on neighboring properties, that it would ask to review 
the SWPPP.

COMMUNITY FOUNDATION – RUTH OJA SCHOLARSHIP:  Laurie Husted 
reported that the Community Foundation has sent notification that there has been a 
$1,000 donation made to the Ruth Oja Environmental Scholarship, making it possible to 
extend the years that it is available.  

MATERIALS MANAGEMENT SUBCOMMITTEE:  Laurie Husted asked Sarah 
Imboden if she had an update on work of the Subcommittee.  Sarah said that there was 
not much to report; they have a list of projects that they are working on, including 
Recycling Center volunteers and a leaf collection campaign for the Fall.  

REPORT FROM COUNCILWOMAN BRENDA CAGLE:  Laurie Husted noted that 
Brenda Cagle reported that the Town Board is still working on Trail applications, which 
required her to spend a day at a workshop about how to apply for the grant.  It is 
complicated, as the County doesn't want to be Lead Agency and doesn't want the Town 
to be Lead Agency for the section of trail proposed on Linden Avenue.  Laurie said that 
after the Trails Committee was notified of Dutchess County's position, they decided to 
choose to apply for a section of sidewalk on the east side of Route 9 from the Town Hall 
to Hannaford Supermarket, as it would have a better chance of receiving funding.  
Laurie added that Brenda also took a ride on the LOOP bus to check where the riders 
were for a shuttle determination.  

CITIZENS FOR LOCAL POWER PRESENTATION:  Laurie Husted introduced 
Susan Gillespie, a co-founder of Citizens for Local Power, who attended to give a 
presentation.  Susan began by noting that Citizens for Local Power was organized in 
Rosendale in January 2013 as a reaction to a proposed merger between Central Hudson 
and Fortis Inc., a Canadian holding company.    

Denis Collet joined the meeting.  



                                                                                                                                            3
Susan Gillespie continued that, as CAC members who attended a meeting with Citizens 
for Local Power at the Elmendorph Inn in April were told, the group found concerns, 
from a bad environmental record of previous Fortis dealings to the lack of 
considerations offered to the Central Hudson staff and customers. The group moved 
forward to gather opposition to the merger, and has been quite successful considering 
that they only formed in January when the details were issued for the joint proposal for 
Central Hudson to sell its distribution system to Fortis Inc.  The sale would impact 
nearly 700,000 people on both sides of the Hudson River, primarily in Ulster and 
Dutchess Counties.  Susan G. described the group's research into Fortis' environmental 
record and said that in the particular case of a dam construction in Belize, engineers 
made mistakes, hid information, and the company showed a critical lack of concern for 
the welfare of the customers.

The Public Service Commission (PSC)  responded to the concerns of Citizens for Local 
Power and granted extra public hearings and comment time.  Following the extra 
hearings and review of public and expert comment, the PSC issued a public draft of the 
decisions that the Commissioners might adopt, which recommended against the takeover 
of Central Hudson by Fortis Inc.  Susan continued that Jen Metzger,  Chairwoman of the 
Rosendale Environmental Commission, and Manna Jo Greene of Clearwater joined her 
to take the issue to the Rosendale Town Board, which passed a resolution of opposition.  
Other Ulster County towns and cities followed with resolutions, and Red Hook wrote 
letters of opposition.  

Citizens for Local Power has been paying lawyers to be able to protect the Towns from 
rate increases that are likely to follow if Fortis Inc. takes over Central Hudson.  Susan G. 
noted the financial risks for Fortis Inc.  The acquisition is a billion and a half dollars, 
including a half billion dollar debt to be assumed.  Fortis is also creating special stock 
options.  Susan G. said that the PSC staff built in protections, but asked how to protect 
Central Hudson if Fortis went bankrupt.  She added that currently there seemed potential 
for the opposition to prevent the merger.  She noted that opposition is not based on 
negative opinion of Central Hudson, though there are things that Central Hudson could 
be doing better, such as investing in green energy, encouraging solar installations and net 
metering.  The question is how responsive will be a distant company, whose interest is 
purely financial.  

Denis Collet said that it sounded as if Susan G. was trying to build a case that Central 
Hudson had a moral imperative to do the best for customers, but that he had problems 
dealing with them on net metering, and didn't feel that assurance of them being 
particularly responsive to local needs.  He stated that unless Citizens for Local Power 
could provide an economic alternative for Central Hudson, he could not see a positive 
end result of blocking the merger.  Susan G. said Fortis is a weaker company financially, 



but that she agreed basically with Denis.  She added that blocking the merger is             4 
important because Central Hudson would be more responsive, especially with the 
Municipal Consortium that she will be proposing.   Denis replied that blocking the 
merger could lead Central Hudson to apply for a rate increase to relieve their debt; the 
problem is that the PSC's role is to protect the general welfare, but it does not really 
have any teeth.  

Municipal Consortium:  Susan Gillespie agreed that is part of the problem, but said that 
is why we need a Municipal Consortium.   Denis asked what the charter of a Municipal 
Consortium would be.   Susan G. replied that if municipalities combine forces to have a 
voice, they will be in a stronger position to negotiate with utilities.  Also there will be a 
broader way for communities to do research, share information and investigate 
alternatives, such as more solar arrays and microgrids.  It would offer the opportunity to 
develop an energy system that serves our needs, protects the environment and is reliable 
and resiliant in the face of climate change.  

Denis asked how it would be funded and what would be the source of authority.  Susan 
G. replied that authority would come from the municipalities themselves.  She feels that 
the PSC is quite receptive to hearing the voice of the public, though they need to be 
pushed to do more.  Changes that the Consortium would propose will require legislation, 
and that legislation would need the push from municipalities.  Denis continued that then 
the bottom line is money to fund the Consortium.  He noted that there is lobbying for 
increased solar; Jeff Irish of Hudson Solar has made inroads in developing legislation. 
He suggested that ultimately a consideration might be creation of a public utility.  Susan 
G. said that the only way to come to that possibility would be to mobilize the public.  
She was impressed at the Elmendorph meeting that a number of people were seriously 
interested in exploring alternative ways of providing energy,  She said that people need 
to put their heads together to do research, adding that smart people are the real issue, not 
money.  The current proposal is to ask the communities for a modest amount to fund the 
Consortium, and the group can probably raise money.  

Sarah Imboden asked what the CAC needs to do if it is to propose that the Town Board 
join the consortium; what is the cost.  Susan G. replied that the cost right now is $1,500 
for a Town or Village, which is a maximum, as fund raising may reduce it.  Sarah asked 
if there is a website.  Susan G. said that there is not at this time, but she could send the 
document describing the Consortium in detail, and a draft resolution for joining.  Sarah 
asked if there is presently a board to head the Consortium; Susan G. replied that the 
group is at a transition point.  It was formed to lead opposition to the proposed merger, 
which may be decided in days or the next month.  There will need to be discussion of 
how the Consortium will function.  Mike Zelie noted that the Consortium would need to 
work with politicians to modify laws.  Susan G. said that the group would organize 
around the Central Hudson service area, and so far the politicians are supportive. 



                                                                                                                                           5
Denis Collet stressed that he didn't think that blocking the merger has the appeal that 
offering an alternative structure or ownership of the utility would have.  From the 
standpoint of accountability, the laws are the laws in terms of being able to enforce 
them. Susan Gillespie felt that it is much more difficult to enforce the law on an out of 
country company.  Denis said that he really wants the discussion to get away from the 
notion of which master would be the better master.   

Sarah said that if the CAC is to consider recommending that the Town join, the CAC 
needs to know what the $1,500 will be used for, what the Town's representation would 
be, and more details on how the Consortium would operate.  The Town is really going to 
want to know that the $1,500 will help Red Hook have some control over local energy 
issues.  Susan G. said that she would send the CAC what materials she can and asked 
that the Town assess what it would look for in representation.  

Denis said that the Consortium idea is good, and the energy is there and it needs to be 
taken where it can go.  To fund the project, the Town needs to see a clear plan, detailed 
budget and a especially a mission statement that is legal and workable.  Susan G. said 
that the group envisions having a voice in rate change requests, uses of capital 
investment money, i.e. should it be for natural gas.  She felt that money should also be 
used for media education on the issues.  

Denis asked if the Consortium would be a registered 501C non profit.  Susan G. replied 
that it might not need to be, as most of the joining entities already are, but she agreed 
that there needs to be a formal legal framework.  Denis added that there needs to be a 
definition of the organizational structure and a responsibility matrix showing what roles 
and responsibilities each member would have.  Susan G. said that the Town is at the 
perfect moment to have input on all these issues and determine the focus and direction.  
Laurie Husted said that she wanted to know for sure that the Consortium would have a 
formal role in rate cases if the merger is approved.  Susan G. said that with the formal 
organization and a lawyer, that the Consortium would have a voice.  Though the 
Consortium wouldn't have a seat on the PSC, public pressure would indirectly influence 
the deliberations.  

Sarah Imboden suggested that if the Town Board were asked to commit to the planning 
process for the Consortium, without a fee, it might do so.  Then there would be 
discussion of a representative.  For the coming year the Consortium could ask for 
budgeted funding.  Denis would want to see technical representation as well as legal 
representation.  Laurie said that she has been looking for that in relation to the merger.  
Susan G. reiterated that she has seen two main roles for the Consortium – to be involved 
in rate negotiations and to look for alternative energy strategies.  



                                                                                                                                           6
Sarah Imboden concluded that there definitely is interest within the Town, and suggested 
that there be another workshop including several towns.  Susan G. asked if CAC would 
have members who would help them draw in people from the other municipalities.  
Laurie said that the CAC could help.

Susan Gillespie thanked the CAC for its ideas, and the CAC thanked Susan for making 
the presentation proposing the Consortium.

ADJOURNMENT:  The meeting was adjourned at 8:26 P.M.

NEXT MEETING:  Wednesday, June 12, 2013 at 7 P.M.  at the Town Hall

Respectfully submitted,

Susan H. Ellis, Secretary


